

© 2018 Canadian Medical Association
These proceedings are prepared for discussion with members of the medical profession only; they are protected by copyright and may not be reproduced or quoted in whole or in part or paraphrased in any manner without written permission from the Canadian Medical Association.
For additional copies, please contact:
Canadian Medical Association, 1867 Alta Vista Drive, Ottawa ON K1G 5W8
Tel.: 800 267-9703; 613 731-9331

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Elected Officials	1
Secretariat	2
2017 Delegates, member observers and non-member observers	3
Proceedings	9
Introduction and official opening	9
The Art of Vision: A revolutionary new experience	9
Address by the federal minister of health	9
Physician innovation: It's all around us	9
Exploring and innovating on the values that unite medicine	9
Innovative dialogue: Emerging issues	10
Address by the Quebec minister of health and social services	10
Inspiring the profession: How innovators drive change	10
Walking the talk: Building a Charter of Shared Values for Canadian medicine	10
General motions	11
Valedictory address	13
Physicians facing Canada's opioid crisis	13
Installation of president and inaugural address	13
Celebrating the profession: CMA awards	13
Medical assistance in dying: Where do we go from here?	14
Nominations and elections	14
Board of Directors business	15
Membership fee.	15
Closing of General Council	15
Annual General Meeting	16
Opening	16
Appointment of Auditor	16
Governance Committee report (Bylaws)	16
Members Q&A	16
New business	16
Adjournment	16

ELECTED OFFICIALS

General Council Speaker and Deputy Speaker 2017

SpeakerMaria Alexiadis, MDDeputy SpeakerErnst Shuster, MD

Board of Directors 2016-17

Chair Brian Brodie, MD*
President Granger Avery, MB*
President-Elect Laurent Marcoux, MD*
Past President Cindy Forbes, MD*
Yukon Rao Tadepalli, MD
Northwest Territories Ewan Affleck, MD
British Columbia Nasir Jetha, MD*
Shelley Ross, MD

Robin Saunders, MD Michael Giuffre, MD

Alberta Michael Giuffre, MD
Linda Slocombe, MD

Saskatchewan Guruswamy Sridhar, MD

ManitobaMaurice Roy, MDOntarioKiran Cherla, MD

Atul Kapur, MD Albert Ng, MD Adam Steacie, MD Shawn Whatley, MD

Québec Bruno L'Heureux, MD

Abdo Shabah, MD Ann Collins, MD

New Brunswick
Ann Collins, MD
Nova Scotia
Celina White, MD
Prince Edward Island
Essel MacDaneld

Prince Edward IslandFrank MacDonald, MDNewfoundland & LabradorBrendan Lewis, MD*ResidentsKimberly Williams, MDStudentsFranco Rizzuti, MD

^{*} Members, CMA Executive Committee

SECRETARIAT

Canadian Medical Association

Chief Executive Officer Tim Smith

Chief Policy Advisor

Chief Advisor to the CEO

Owen Adams, PhD

Torindo (Tony) Panetta

Chief Financial Officer Jimmy Mui
Vice-President, Strategy Terry Albert

Vice-President, Medical Professionalism Jeff Blackmer, MD

Vice-President, Enterprise Marketing and Communications Luce Lavoie

Vice-President, Member Relevance John Feeley

Vice-President, Patient and Public Engagement

Vice-President, Legal, Governance and Meeting Services

Joseph Mayer

Jean Nelson

Manager, Recording Secretary

Heather Nowlan

Joule

Chief Executive Officer Lindee David

MD Financial Management

President and Chief Executive Officer Brian Peters

DELEGATES, OBSERVERS AND NON-MEMBER OBSERVERS

Delegates

Acharya, Dr. Sanjay, Nepean, Ont. Adams, Dr. Howard, Windsor, Ont. Affleck, Dr. Ewan, Yellowknife, N.W.T. Alakija, Dr. Pauline, Edmonton, Alta. Alam, Dr. Nadia, Georgetown, Ont. Albuquerque, Dr. Joy, Toronto, Ont. Alexiadis, Dr. Maria, Halifax, N.S. Amirault, Dr. Wendy, Vancouver, B.C. Ananth, Dr. Shobana, Toronto, Ont. Andrusky, Dr. Kathryn, Edmonton, Alta. Annan, Mr. Henry, Bedford, N.S. Annand, Dr. Stephen, Okotoks, Alta. Athaide, Dr. Gregory, Whitby, Ont. Avery, Dr. Granger, Port McNeill, B.C.

Baer, Dr. Philip, North York, Ont. Bakri, Dr. Majid, Mayo, Y.T. Barron, Dr. Lesley, Limehouse, Ont. Bechard, Dr. Melanie, Toronto, Ont. Beck, Dr. Gail, Ottawa, Ont. Beder, Dr. Michaela, Toronto, Ont. Blumenauer, Dr. Barbara, Kamloops, B.C. Bolano, Dr. Silvana, Ottawa, Ont. Boroditsky, Dr. Mark, Winnipeg, Man. Bostwick, Dr. Joanna, Ottawa, Ont. Boucher, Dr. Paul, Calgary, Alta. Boudreau, Dr. Daniel, Halifax, N.S. Bow, Dr. Michael, Edmonton, Alta. Bradshaw, Dr. Candace, Winnipeg, Man. Brcic, Dr. Vanessa, Vancouver, B.C. Breen, Dr. Katherine, Yellowknife, N.W.T. Brehmer, Dr. Larry, Whitehorse, Y.T. Bridger, Dr. Tracey, St. Philips, N.L. Bridges, Dr. Ron, Calgary, Alta. Brodie, Dr. Brian, Chilliwack, B.C. Brown, Dr. Mark, Moose Jaw, Sask.

Cadesky, Dr. Eric, Vancouver, B.C. Cameron, Dr. Bruce, Moncton, N.B. Canil, Dr. Katherine, Igaluit, Nvt. Cannon, Dr. Crystal, Portland, Ont. Cargill, Dr. Darren, Windsor, Ont. Carr, Dr. Padraic, Edmonton, Alta. Charles, Dr. Christopher, Toronto, Ont. Charters, Dr. Jane, Oakville, Ont. Cherla, Dr. Kiran, Richmond Hill, Ont. Chiu, Dr. Aaron, Winnipeg, Man. Chou, Dr. Jackie, Prince Albert, Sask. Clarke, Dr. Andrew, Vancouver, B.C. Collins, Dr. Ann, Fredericton, N.B. Collins-Nakai, Dr. Ruth, Edmonton, Alta. Colman, Dr. Laurence, Etobicoke, Ont. Conte, Dr. Paul, Kitchener, Ont. Coolican, Dr. Paul, Morrisburg, Ont. Cooper, Dr. Neil, Calgary, Alta. Corbett, Dr. Mark, Coldstream, B.C.

Cox, Dr. Christopher, St. John's, N.L. Cox, Dr. Robin, Calgary, Alta. Cram, Dr. David, Souris, Man. Cruz, Dr. Laura, Etobicoke, Ont. Cunningham, Dr. William, Victoria, B.C.

Damji, Dr. Ali, Mississauga, Ont.
Davies, Dr. Robert, Calgary, Alta.
Davis, Dr. Colette, Vancouver, B.C.
Dawson, Mr. Andrew, Kingston, Ont.
Demers, Dr. Vincent, Québec, Que.
DeSantis, Dr. Teresa, Burlington, Ont.
Desbiens, Mr. Louis Charles, Québec, Que.
Dhanoa, Dr. Del, Sudbury, Ont.
Domke, Dr. Sheila, Winnipeg, Man.
Donohue, Dr. Lee, Gloucester, Ont.
Dow, Dr. Michelle, Meteghan Centre, N.S.
Downes, Dr. Andrew, Greely, Ont.
Duggan, Dr. Shelley, Edmonton, Alta.
Dutt, Dr. Monika, Sydney, N.S.
Dwyer, Dr. Lynn, St. John's, N.L.

Elhalwi, Mr. Alexandre, Montréal, Que. Esser, Dr. David, North York, Ont.

Fage, Dr. Bruce, Toronto, Ont.
Fancy, Dr. Nicole, Stratford, P.E.I.
Finkelstein, Dr. Michael, Toronto, Ont.
Fischer, Dr. David, Barrie, Ont.
Fitzgerald, Dr. Charlene, Happy Valley-Goose Bay, N.L.
Flower, Dr. David, Fredericton, N.B.
Flynn, Dr. Greg, Toronto, Ont.
Forbes, Dr. Cindy, Waverley, N.S.
Forman, Dr. Rachel, Toronto, Ont.
Freeman, Dr. Alison, Whitehorse, Y.T.
Fritz, Dr. Bradley, Vancouver, B.C.

Gallagher, Dr. Kathy, Bedford, N.S.
German, Dr. Greg, Charlottetown, P.E.I.
Gerschman, Dr. Tommy, North Vancouver, B.C.
Gillespie, Dr. Ian, Victoria, B.C.
Giuffre, Dr. Michael, Calgary, Alta.
Gobeil, Dr. François, Boucherville, Que.
Goel, Dr. Ritika, Toronto, Ont.
Golbey, Dr. Michael, Kelowna, B.C.
Gosselin, Dr. Pierre Charles, Québec, Que.
Gow, Dr. Alan, Osoyoos, B.C.
Goyal, Dr. Kunal, Regina, Sask.
Grandy, Mr. Jamie, St. John's, N.L.
Grisdale, Dr. Noel, Black Diamond, Alta.
Groulx, Mr. Mathieu, Québec, Que.
Gupta, Dr. Samir, North York, Ont.

Haddad, Dr. Camille, Miramichi, N.B. Hains, Dr. Mathieu, Saint-Charles-Borromée, Que. Harris, Dr. Jessica, Saskatoon, Sask. Hawrylyshyn, Dr. Stephen, Toronto, Ont. Hefford, Dr. Brenda, White Rock, B.C. Hemans, Dr. Clover, Oakville, Ont. Holland, Dr. Timothy, Fall River, N.S. Horvat, Dr. Daniel, Prince George, B.C. Howlett, Dr. Todd, Dartmouth, N.S. Huang, Dr. Felicia, Whitehorse, Y.T. Hudak, Dr. Alan, Orillia, Ont.

Iles, Dr. David Llewellyn, Rothesay, N.B.

Jacobson, Dr. Bradley, Thunder Bay, Ont. Jen, Dr. Yun, Montréal, Que. Jetha, Dr. Nasir, Vancouver, B.C. Jevremovic, Dr. Tatiana, London, Ont. Johnson, Dr. Darcy, Winnipeg, Man. Jones, Dr. Ralph, Chilliwack, B.C. Jyu, Dr. Christopher, Scarborough, Ont.

Kancir, Dr. Jesse, Vancouver, B.C. Kapur, Dr. Atul, Ottawa, Ont. Karunakaran, Dr. Siva, Regina, Sask. Kelleher, Dr. Barbara, Brandon, Man. Kelly, Dr. Kimberley, Edmonton, Alta. Khan, Ms. Bushra, Hamilton, Ont. Khandelwal, Dr. Sanjay, Surrey, B.C. Khatchikian, Ms. Aline, Québec, Que. Khatter, Dr. Kapil, Ottawa, Ont. Kim, Dr. David, Nanaimo, B.C. King, Dr. John-Paul A. C., Halifax, N.S. Kolbasnik, Dr. Jeff, Carlisle, Ont. Kollias, Dr. Carrie, Lethbridge, Alta. Konstantynowicz, Dr. Barbara, Regina, Sask. Kosar, Dr. Stephen, Sudbury, Ont. Kovacs, Dr. James, Burlington, Ont. Kraft, Dr. Claudia, Yellowknife, N.W.T.

L'Heureux, Dr. Bruno, Laval, Que.
Lafontaine, Dr. Alika, Grande Prairie, Alta.
Lafreniere, Dr. Anthea, Ottawa, Ont.
Landry, Dr. Marlène, La Baie, Que.
Larsen Soles, Dr. Trina, Golden, B.C.
Lewis, Dr. Brendan, Corner Brook, N.L.
Liao, Dr. Pamela, Toronto, Ont.
Little, Dr. Chris, Penticton, B.C.
Lowe, Mr. Matthew, Lower Sackville, N.S.
Lu, Ms. Daphne, Delta, B.C.

Ma, Mr. Keon, Edmonton, Alta.
MacDonald, Dr. Frank, Charlottetown, P.E.I.
Mansfield, Dr. Pamela, Moncton, N.B.
Marcoux, Dr. Laurent, Longueuil, Que.
Martyna, Dr. Michael, Edmonton, Alta.
Martyniuk, Mr. Steven, Saskatoon, Sask.
Masterson, Dr. Tami, Edmonton, Alta.
Mastrogiacomo, Dr. Caterina, Scarborough, Ont.
May, Dr. David, Powell River, B.C.
Maybaum, Dr. Lloyd, Calgary, Alta.
McLeod, Dr. Scott, Calgary, Alta.
Melanson, Dr. Serge, Pointe-Du-Chêne, N.B.
Michaud, Dr. Michèle, Edmundston, N.B.
Molnar, Dr. Christine, Calgary, Alta.

Moss, Dr. Pippa, Amherst, N.S. Muldowney, Dr. Siobhan, Smiths Falls, Ont. Murphy-Kaulbeck, Dr. Lynn Carole, Moncton, N.B.

Newbery, Dr. Sarah, Marathon, Ont. Ng, Dr. Albert, Windsor, Ont. Nguyen, Dr. Audrey, Winnipeg, Man. Nicholas, Dr. Tim, Aurora, Ont. Nohr, Dr. Carl, Medicine Hat, Alta.

O'Neil, Dr. Barbara, Bedford, N.S. Oppel, Dr. Lloyd, Vancouver, B.C. Orsini, Dr. Silvia, Komoka, Ont. Osler, Dr. Gigi, Winnipeg, Man. Otte, Dr. Jessica, Nanaimo, B.C.

Pabani, Dr. Shehnaz, Sudbury, Ont.
Pageau, Dr. Paul, Ottawa, Ont.
Pan, Dr. Larry, Charlottetown, P.E.I.
Pardhan, Dr. Kaif, Toronto, Ont.
Parks, Dr. Paul, Medicine Hat, Alta.
Pelletier, Dr. Michèle, Montréal, Que.
Peterson, Dr. Sean, Sarnia, Ont.
Pillay, Dr. Intheran, Gravelbourg, Sask.
Pinheiro Carvalho, Ms. Julia, Brossard, Que.
Pope, Dr. James, Grande Prairie, Alta.
Powell, Dr. Tammy, Grand Falls-Windsor, N.L.
Prins, Dr. Mark, Inuvik, N.W.T.
Prud'homme, Dr. Shannon, Treherne, Man.
Puri, Dr. Nitasha, Vancouver, B.C.

Quinlan, Dr. Andrew, St. John's, N.L. Qureshi, Dr. Amer, Stephenville, N.L.

Ratti, Dr. Jillian, Calgary, Alta.
Raza, Dr. Danyaal, Toronto, Ont.
Reddoch, Dr. Allon, Marsh Lake, Y.T.
Reid, Dr. Anna, Yellowknife, N.W.T.
Rizzuti, Dr. Franco, Rocky View County, Alta.
Ross, Dr. Shelley, Burnaby, B.C.
Roy, Dr. Maurice, Ste. Anne, Man.
Ruddiman, Dr. Alan, Oliver, B.C.
Rumbolt, Dr. Brian, Winnipeg, Man.
Ryan, Dr. Daniel, Edmonton, Alta.

Salvaterra, Dr. Nadia, Inuvik, N.W.T. Samson, Dr. Isabelle, Québec, Que. Saunders, Dr. Robin, Sooke, B.C. Sauveur, Dr. Colette, River Philip, N.S. Schieck, Dr. David, Elora, Ont. Schindler, Dr. Nathalie, Ancaster, Ont. Schuster, Dr. Ernst, Edmonton, Alta. Scully, Dr. Hugh, Toronto, Ont. Shabah, Dr. Abdo, Montréal, Que. Shah, Dr. Hemant, Etobicoke, Ont. She, Dr. Alex, Vancouver, B.C. Sheikh, Dr. Hasan, Toronto, Ont. Singh, Dr. Dharm, Dalhousie, N.B. Singh, Ms. Tanjot, Surrey, B.C. Singhal, Dr. Rajni, North York, Ont.

Sivertson, Dr. Joanne, Prince Albert, Sask. Slavik, Dr. Dalibor, Saskatoon, Sask. Slocombe, Dr. Linda, Calgary, Alta. Smith, Dr. Louis, Grande Pointe, Man. Smith, Ms. Stephanie, Calgary, Alta. Snelgrove, Dr. Natasha, Hamilton, Ont. Sridhar, Dr. Guruswamy, Regina, Sask. Steacie, Dr. Adam, Brockville, Ont. Stewart, Dr. James, Toronto, Ont. Stewart, Dr. Trina, Summerside, P.E.I. Stosky, Dr. Jordan, Calgary, Alta. Swenson, Dr. Robert, Ottawa, Ont. Sze, Dr. Shirley, Kamloops, B.C.

Tadepalli, Dr. Rao, Whitehorse, Y.T. Tan, Mr. Odell, Saskatoon, Sask. Tardif, Dr. Daniel, Cantley, Que. Tassi, Dr. Hisham, Thompson, Man. Templeton, Dr. Christina, St. John's, N.L. Thériault, Dr. Guylène, Gatineau, Que. Thompson, Dr. Kristjan, Winnipeg, Man. Tilley, Dr. Stephen, Red Deer, Alta. Toth, Dr. Michael, Aylmer, Ont. Townsend, Dr. Derek, Edmonton, Alta. Tracey, Dr. John, Brampton, Ont. Trinh, Ms. Angèle, Montréal, Que. Tytus, Dr. Richard, Hamilton, Ont.

Vander-Stelt, Dr. Ruth, Gatineau, Que. Vanderweyen, Mr. Davy, Sherbrooke, Que. Varshney, Dr. Vishal, Vancouver, B.C. Viens, Dr. Hugo, Montréal, Que. Vohra, Dr. Manoj, Valley, N.S.

Wasylenko, Dr. Eric, Okotoks, Alta.
Webb, Dr. Charles, Vancouver, B.C.
Welt, Dr. Michel, Montréal, Que.
Whatley, Dr. Shawn, Mount Albert, Ont.
Whelan, Dr. John, Rothesay, N.B.
White, Dr. Celina, Amherst, N.S.
White, Dr. Edward, Charlottetown, P.E.I.
Williams, Dr. Kimberly, Calgary, Alta.
Wilton, Dr. David, Vancouver, B.C.
Wong, Dr. Janice, Vancouver, B.C.
Woo, Dr. Allan, Saskatoon, Sask.
Woodside, Dr. Donald, Toronto, Ont.

Xie, Dr. Edward, Kingston, Ont.

Yamashiro, Dr. Hirotaka, Richmond Hill, Ont. Yammine, Dr. Nadine, Chatham, Ont. Yelland, Dr. Joel, Saskatoon, Sask. Young, Dr. Joanne, Vancouver, B.C.

Member Observers

Abraham, Dr. Joseph, Edmonton, Alta. Aldridge, Dr. Elizabeth, Oakville, Ont. Allen, Dr. Albert, Toronto, Ont. Amin, Dr. Khizer, Woodbridge, Ont. Anastasio, Dr. Natascia, Montréal, Que. Anderson, Dr. Leslie, Winnipeg, Man. Archibald, Ms. Alyssa, Winnipeg, Man. Arseneau, Dr. Thierry, Moncton, N.B. Asrar, Dr. Farhan, Mississauga, Ont.

Banijamali, Dr. Hamid, Calgary, Alta.
Bent, Dr. Stephen, Miramichi, N.B.
Bergeron, Mr. Samuel, Trois-Rivières, Que.
Bernard, Dr. André, Halifax, N.S.
Bhyat, Dr. Rashaad, Toronto, Ont.
Blackmer, Dr. Jeff, Ottawa, Ont.
Blair, Dr. Tony, Rimouski, Que.
Blake, Dr. Jennifer, Ottawa, Ont.
Boroditsky, Dr. Lila, Winnipeg, Man.
Bouchard, Dr. Maurice, St-Augustin-de-Desmaures, Que.
Bourrier, Mr. Mathieu, Winnipeg, Man.
Brezar, Dr. Aleksandar, Gatineau, Que.

Bourrier, Mr. Mathieu, Winnipeg, Man.
Brezar, Dr. Aleksandar, Gatineau, Que.
Briggs, Mr. Christopher, Winnipeg, Man.
Bronson, Dr. Maria, Winnipeg, Man.
Brooks, Dr. Jane, Middleton, N.S.
Brown, Ms. Nicole, St. John's, N.L.
Bryniak, Dr. Steven, Saint John, N.B.
Burtally, Dr. Ahmad, Gander, N.L.
Bustamante, Dr. Nicolas, Baie-Comeau, Que.
Bzura, Dr. Thomas, Winnipeg, Man.

Cameron-Vendrig, Dr. Julia, Kitchener, Ont. Carverhill, Ms. Jacqueline, Saskatoon, Sask. Chabot, Ms. Annie, Montréal, Que. Chagnon, Dr. Françoise, Ottawa, Ont. Chan, Dr. Jessica, Vancouver, B.C. Chen, Mr. Bing Yu, Saint-Laurent, Que. Cho, Dr. Victoria Yuen Wai, Edmonton, Alta. Chu, Dr. Jackson, Burnaby, B.C. Cloutier, Dr. Louise, Wolfville, N.S.

Dellabough, Mr. Lucas, Victoria, B.C. Deshauer, Dr. Dorian, Toronto, Ont. Desrosiers, Dr. Michel, Westmount, Que. Dhillon, Dr. Paul, Delta, B.C. Do, Mr. Victor, Edmonton, Alta. Doig, Dr. Anne, Saskatoon, Sask. Drew, Mrs. Barbara, Ottawa, Ont. Duce, Mr. Bradley, Cochrane, Alta.

Enlow, Mr. William, Québec, Que.

Felsen, Dr. Shim Seymour Izzy, North York, Ont. Ferguson, Dr. Brian, Amherst, N.S. Ferguson, Dr. Heather, Prince Albert, Sask. Finlayson, Dr. Anne, Winnipeg, Man. Fischer, Dr. Krista, Barrie, Ont. Flambert, Dr. Florence, Québec (Qc) Forest, Dr. Jean-Claude, Québec, Que. Fournier, Dr. Marcien, Québec, Que. Francescutti, Dr. Louis, Sherwood Park, Alta. Francoeur, Dr. Diane, Montréal, Que. Fung, Dr. Kay, Surrey, B.C. Fung, Dr. Kenneth, Richmond, B.C.

Gagnon, Dr. Pierre, Québec, Que.
Ganesh, Dr. Aravind, Calgary, Alta.
Ganjizadeh Zavareh, Dr. Farahnaz, Edmonton, Alta.
Gerace, Dr. Rocco, Toronto, Ont.
Godin, Dr. Louis, Westmount, Que.
Gousseau, Dr. Hélène, Ottawa, Ont.
Goyal, Dr. Seema, Regina, Sask.
Graham, Dr. Jamie, Corner Brook, N.L.
Grant, Dr. Nancy, Saint John, N.B.
Green, Dr. Samantha, Toronto, Ont.
Gudapati, Dr. Sumathi, Vancouver, B.C.
Guévremont, Dr. Pierre, Sept-Îles, Que.

Haddad, Dr. Henry, Sherbrooke, Que. Hall, Dr. Justin, Toronto, Ont. Halparin, Dr. Elliot, Georgetown, Ont. Han, Dr. Thomas, Markham, Ont. Hanafi, Miss Sarah, Edmonton, Alta. Hanson, Dr. Dana, Fredericton, N.B. Harvey, Dr. Pierre, Rivière-du-Loop, Que. Hawker, Dr. Gillian, Toronto, Ont. Hawker, Dr. Leisha, Halifax, N.S. Hayward, Dr. Jenette, Winnipeg, Man. He, Dr. Shixiao, Greenfield Park, Que. Helme Jorgensen, Dr. Sally, Bridgewater, N.S. Hillis, Dr. Christopher, Hamilton, Ont. Ho, Dr. Cedric, Burnaby, B.C. Horn, Dr. Edward, Ottawa, Ont. Hosseini, Dr. Tahereh, Manotick, Ont. Howatt, Dr. Eric, Kentville, N.S. Hutchison, Dr. Susan, Edmonton, Alta.

Inkpen, Dr. Linda, St. John's, N.L.

Jeney, Dr. Christa, Toronto, Ont. Jetha, Dr. Shamim, Vancouver, B.C. Jogiat, Mr. Uzair, Calgary, Alta. Johnston, Dr. Richard, Edmonton, Alta. Julien, Dr. Gilles, Montréal, Que. Juurlink, Dr. David, Toronto, Ont.

Kaufmann, Dr. Michael, Warkworth, Ont.
Kazimirski, Dr. Judith, Falmouth, N.S.
Kelsall, Dr. Diane, Ottawa, Ont.
Kendel, Dr. Dennis, Saskatoon, Sask.
Kippen, Dr. Robert, Winnipeg, Man.
Kirwan, Dr. Margaret, Victoria, B.C.
Konder, Ms. Ricarda Marlene, Saint John, N.B.
Korostensky, Mr. Michael, Calgary, Alta.
Kozroski, Dr. Clare, Gull Lake, Sask.
Krawchenko-Shawarsky, Dr. Adriana, Winnipeg, Man.
Krejcik, Dr. Vera, Calgary, Alta.
Kukha-Mohamad, Dr. Shirwan, Saskatoon, Sask.
Kuling, Dr. Peter, Ottawa, Ont.

Ladha, Dr. Nizar, St. John's, N.L. Lalonde, Dr. Donald, Saint John, N.B. Lametti, Mr. André, Verdun, Que. Landry, Dr. Léo-Paul, Boucherville, Que. Lanthier-Labonté, Dr. Stéphanie, Brossard, Que. Lavoie, Dr. Lionel, Melfort, Sask. Lee, Dr. Kathy, Vancouver, B.C. Lefebvre, Mr. Maxime, Sherbrooke, Que. LeGrand-Westfall, Dr. Lorraine, Ottawa, Ont. Lemire, Dr. Francine, Toronto, Ont. Li, Ms. Amy, Calgary, Alta. Liu, Miss Felicity, Edmonton, Alta. Locke, Dr. Janet, Eagle Ridge, Sask. Loewen, Ms. Keely, Altona, Man. Low, Dr. Catherine, Ottawa, Ont. Luo, Miss Lucy, Montréal, Que.

Ma, Dr. Grace, Toronto, Ont. Macphail, Ms. Emily, Calgary, Alta. Maheu, Dr. Tasha-Rachelle, Campbell River, B.C. Man, Dr. Julie, Vancouver, B.C. Marwaha, Dr. Seema, Toronto, Ont. Mast, Dr. Ken, Burnaby, B.C. McCarthy, Dr. Colm, Hamilton, Ont. McMillan, Dr. Colin, Charlottetown, P.E.I. Meng, Dr. Fanyi, Montréal, Que. Middleton, Dr. James, Portland, Ont. Milne, Dr. David, Calgary, Alta. Mittelsteadt, Dr. Lyle, Edmonton, Alta. Moineau, Dr. Geneviève, Orléans, Ont. Molnar, Dr. Geza, Brampton, Ont. Mukhopadhyay, Dr. Baijayanta, Montréal, Que. Mulroy, Dr. Liam, Halifax, N.S.

Nadeau, Dr. Pierre, Verdun, Que. Ng, Miss Vivian, Scarborough, Ont.

O'Brien-Bell, Dr. John, Surrey, B.C. Oleksinski, Dr. Stan, Prince Albert, Sask. Ouellet, Dr. Robert, Montréal, Que.

Padmos, Dr. Martin Andrew, Ottawa, Ont. Palay, Dr. Joshua, Winnipeg, Man. Patel, Dr. Sunilkumar, Gimli, Man. Patil, Dr. Nikhilesh, Halifax, N.S. Penner, Dr. Lisa, Calgary, Alta. Porter, Dr. Kathryn, Vancouver, B.C.

Ramlakhan, Dr. Larita, Gravelbourg, Sask. Ratti, Dr. Paul, Calgary, Alta. Read, Dr. Robert, Halifax, N.S. Richer, Dr. Julie, Ottawa, Ont. Rizzardo, Dr. Tyson, Halifax, N.S. Rouselle, Dr. David, Newmarket, Ont. Roye, Dr. Charmaine, Brantford, Ont.

Schonfeld, Dr. Mark, Vancouver, B.C. Sharma, Mr. Ishan, Calgary, Alta. Sharma, Mr. Sahil, Windsor, Ont. Shaw, Dr. Susan, Saskatoon, Sask. Shipley, Dr. Bill, Belleville, Ont. Silverberg, Ms. Sarah, Toronto, Ont. Silvius, Dr. James, Calgary, Alta. Simard, Mr. Philippe, Montréal, Que.

Smith, Dr. Terrence, Raymond, Alta. Sohi, Ms. Gurmeet, Winnipeg, Man. Starkes, Dr. Jill, Gander, N.L. Stern, Dr. Hartley, Ottawa, Ont. Stoneham, Dr. Grant, Saskatoon, Sask. Strasberg, Dr. Suzanne, North York, Ont. Sue, Dr. Kyle Cheong, St. John's, N.L. Sutherland, Dr. Christy, Vancouver, B.C.

Taylor, Mr. Michael, Edmonton, Alta. Tcholakov, Dr. Yassen, Montréal, Que. Thomas, Dr. Réjean, Montréal, Que. Thomsen, Mr. Bryce, Edmonton, Alta. Thornton, Dr. Jane, London, Ont. Tremblay, Dr. Guy, Québec, Que. Trépanier, Ms. Chloé, Montréal, Que. Trudeau, Dr. Jean-Bernard, Longueuil, Que. Tuet, Dr. Gigi, Vancouver, B.C. Tytus, Dr. Stephen, Burlington, Ont.

Van Aerde, Dr. Johny, Ladysmith, B.C.

Wallace, Dr. Gordon, Nepean, Ont. Wallani, Dr. Zulfikarali, Markham, Ont. Wang, Dr. Caroline, Vancouver, B.C. Warrack, Dr. Ian, Kemptville, Ont. Wasswa-Kintu, Dr. Samuel, Toronto, Ont. Watson, Dr. William, Boston, U.S.A. Wheeler, Dr. Jeffrey, Winnipeg, Man. White, Dr. David, Toronto, Ont. Wiley, Dr. Elizabeth, Prince George, B.C. Williams, Dr. Carole, Duncan, B.C. Wong, Dr. Edmund, Ottawa, Ont. Wong, Dr. Julielynn, Toronto, Ont. Wood, Mr. Rick, Saint John, N.B.

Young, Dr. David, Vancouver, B.C. Yu, Dr. Tsai Hsing, St. Catharines, Ont.

Zamora, Dr. Mary, Oakville, Ont. Zygmunt, Dr. Austin, Ottawa, Ont.

Non-Member Observers

Aikman, Mr. Jim, Vancouver, B.C. Alinati, Mr. André, Ottawa, Ont. Auger, Ms. Louise, Ottawa, Ont.

Barbe, Dr. David, Chicago, U.S.A. Barter, Ms. Lynn, St. John's, N.L. Bellavance, Mr. Sylvain, Montréal, Que. Berg, Ms. Angelique, Burlington, Ont. Blanchette, Mr. Denis, Montréal, Que. Bourgoin, Ms. Mélissa, Montréal, Que. Brossart, Ms. Bonnie, Saskatoon, Sask.

Chapman, Mr. Kevin, Dartmouth, N.S. Clement, Dr. Louise, Ottawa, Ont. Cloutier, Mr. Michael, Burlington, Ont. Cordell, Ms. Cathy, Vancouver, B.C. Craib-Laurin, Ms. Laurèl, Ottawa, Ont. Cram, Mr. Robert, Winnipeg, Man. Crolly, Ms. Allison, Winnipeg, Man.

Dahlgren, Dr. Hans, Stockholm, Sweden Davie, Mr. George, Toronto, Ont. Dennis, Dr. Mike, Ottawa, Ont. Dowdall, Ms. Catherine, Toronto, Ont.

Ecker, Ms. Janet, Ajax, Ont. Eidelman, Dr. Leonid, Ramat Gan, Israel Epp, Mr. Michael, Vancouver, B.C.

Fischer, Ms. Debbie, Toronto, Ont. Fralick, Ms. Pamela, Ottawa, Ont. Fréchette, Ms. Danielle, Ottawa, Ont.

Gallinger, Mr. John, Ottawa, Ont. Giasson, Mr. Erik, Montréal, Que. Girouard, Mr. Gerin, Fredericton, N.B. Gormley, Mr. Michael, Edmonton, Alta. Gu, Dr. Faming, Beijing, China

Huston, Mr. Jim, Edmonton, Alta.

Kelly, Ms. Judy, Fredericton, N.B. Kitts, Ms. Jennifer, Ottawa, Ont. Kloiber, Dr. Otmar, Ferney-Voltaire, France Knight, Mr. Anthony, Fredericton, N.B. Kralj, Dr. Boris, Toronto, Ont.

Laberge, Mr. Normand, Verdun, Que. Lauzon, Dr. André, Montréal, Que. Lefebvre, Dr. Fleur-Ange, PhD, Ottawa, Ont. Liu, Mr. Bing, Beijing, China Liu, Ms. Huan, Beijing, China

MacCready-Williams, Ms. Nancy, Dartmouth, N.S. MacLean, Mr. Andrew, Fredericton, N.B. Magyarody, Mr. Tom, Toronto, Ont. Maher, Mr. John, Fredericton, N.B. Mallam, Ms. Katie, Dartmouth, N.S. Maruca, Mr. Matthew, Winnipeg, Man. Masood, Dr. Asim, Toronto, Ont. Matsubara, Dr. Kenji, Tokyo, Japan McFaul, Mr. Michael, Ottawa, Ont. Meagher, Mr. Sean, Toronto, Ont. Michael, Ms. Ann, Flourtown, U.S.A. Milford, Ms. Nancy, Dartmouth, N.S. Mowat, Dr. Andrew, London, England Mowat, Dr. Anthea, London, England

Nelson, Mr. Patrick, Ottawa, Ont. Nobert, Mr. Marcel, Saskatoon, Sask. Noto, Mr. Yuji, Tokyo, Japan

Palmer, Mr. Bruce, Toronto, Ont. Pavri, Mr. Yezdi, North York, Ont. Plank, Ms. Elizabeth, Arlington, Que. Poulin-Denis, Mr. Jacques, Montréal, Que. Pratt, Mr. Courtney, Vancouver, B.C. Robinson, Mr. Craig, Ottawa, Ont. Rodrigue, Mr. Michel, Ottawa, Ont. Rosenburg, Mr. William, San Diego, U.S.A.

Sapsford, Mr. Ron, Toronto, Ont. Sawyer, Mr. Rick, Winnipeg, Man. Scott, Dr. Bruce, Chicago, U.S.A. Scott, Mr. W. lain, Toronto, Ont. Seckel, Mr. Allan, Vancouver, B.C. Shore, Ms. Sharon, Vancouver, B.C. Silas, Ms. Linda, Ottawa, Ont. Smith, Mr. Sean, Calgary, Alta. Sonberg, Ms. Melissa, Montréal, Que. Stensmyren, Dr. Heidi, Stockholm, Sweden Stojanovic, Mrs. Mira, Toronto, Ont.

Taylor, Mr. Victor, Edmonton, Alta. Temple, Sir John, London, England Thi, Ms. Helen, Vancouver, B.C. Thompson, Mr. Robert, St. John's, N.L.

Vasic, Mr. George, Toronto, Ont. Venosa, Ms. Franca, Toronto, Ont. Vézina, Ms. Joanne, Verdun, Que. Viccars, Ms. Deborah, Vancouver, B.C.

Wahl, Mr. Erik, San Diego, U.S.A. Waikakul, Dr. Saranatra, Bangkok, Thailand Wapner, Ms. Leah, Ramat Gan, Israel Watson, Mrs. Wendy, Boston, U.S.A. Way, Mr. Richard, Victoria, B.C. Whitewood, Ms. Amanda, Bedford, N.S. Wood, Ms. Kate, Calgary, Alta.

PROCEEDINGS

Introduction and official opening

- The 150th Annual Meeting of the Canadian Medical Association (CMA) was held at the Quebec City Convention Centre, Aug. 20-23, 2017. General Council met Aug. 21-23, 2017.
- On Mon., Aug. 21, 2017, the meeting was declared to be duly constituted and in session. Welcoming and introductory remarks were provided.

Procedures and rules of conduct

- 3. Dr. Alexiadis indicated that under the CMA bylaw 12.3.4 (c) "The following may submit a nomination for the office of president-elect, which shall be carried out in accordance with the Association's Operating Rules and Procedures: ...any 5 delegates provided that such nomination is presented to General Council in session on the first day of General Council." The speaker announced that any further nominations must be presented to the chair of the Committee on Nominations through the Resolutions Committee by the end of Monday's General Council session.
- 4. Dr. Alexiadis sought consideration of the procedural motions 'en bloc'.

In keeping with Canadian Medical Association bylaw 18.1, the rules of conduct and procedural rules and guidelines for this meeting outlined in the 2017 procedures are adopted.

Resolution 17-1 Carried

General Council approves the use of plurality voting in elections when there are three or more candidates.

Resolution 17-2 Carried

 Dr. Alexiadis introduced the Resolutions Committee comprised of Drs. Ernst Schuster (deputy speaker and chair), Joel Yelland, Alan Gow, Daniel Tardif and James Stewart.

The Art of Vision: A revolutionary new experience

6. Mr. Erik Wahl, internationally recognized motivational speaker, graffiti artist and author expressed through paintings and conversation the need to encourage innovation and superior levels of performance.

Address by the federal minister of health

- 7. Minister Jane Philpott, MD highlighted, amongst other matters, the agreement reached with the provinces and territories on a Common Statement of Principles on Shared Health Priorities, which outlines priorities for federal investments in home and community care, and mental health and addictions. She highlighted federal health portfolio priorities in Indigenous health, the epidemic of opioids and youth mental wellness.
- 8. In closing, she noted that the true test of a civilized society is how it treats its most vulnerable citizens and that doctors are essential to Canada's ability to succeed in passing that test.

Physician innovation: It's all around us

 Dr. Abdo Shabah moderated a panel discussion with Drs. Gilles Julien, Julielynn Wong, Aaron Chiu and Jenette Hayward; each of whom described their innovation journey.

Exploring and innovating on the values that unite medicine

10. A panel comprised of Drs. Michael Kauffman, Dennis Kendel, Franco Rizzuti and Ali Damji discussed experiences, issues, challenges, responsibilities and opportunities for leadership in promoting collegiality within the medical profession. The panel discussed many elements including why intra-professionalism matters; leadership in a taut system; culture, attitudes and professionalism; and system-level considerations.

Innovative dialogue: Emerging issues

11. The speaker introduced the session as a forum for members to suggest, discuss and deliberate on emerging topics affecting patients and the profession to inform policy development.

Federal taxation

12. An overview was presented on issues relating to the proposed federal tax changes to Canadian Controlled Private Corporations, CMA advocacy work to date and future strategy.

Professional Autonomy

13. An overview was presented on issues relating to professional autonomy including strategic questions as to the risks and benefits of the shifts to profession-led regulation; the implications of diminishing the role of profession-led regulation on clinical practice and the health system; and how physicians can become effective partners in the planning and management of medical services in their regions.

Physician Resources

- 14. An overview was provided on issues relating to physician resources including strategic questions on why Canadians continue to experience gaps in finding a family physician and long waits for specialist consultations; whether the medical profession has a responsibility for ensuring an appropriate distribution and specialty mix to meet population needs; if so, what steps should be taken by the profession; and, if not, what alternatives there might be to government action.
- 15. Discussion on emerging issues resumed on Wed., Aug. 23, 2017.

Physician Health

16. An overview was provided on issues relating to physician health including strategic questions on the impact of physician health, stress and burnout on patient care; how to overcome the stigma associated with seeking help in light of the individual, cultural, and systemic barriers in acknowledging, identifying and addressing physician health issues; what the profession can do to build a culture of self-care and support; resources and practices required to identify and support victims of intimate partner violence, as well as colleagues or other individuals who are concerned or suffering from such violence; and the barriers physicians may experience in accessing care.

Pharmacare

- 17. An overview was provided on pharmacare in Canada including strategic questions on whether Canada has "hit the wall" in terms of its ability to expand the boundaries of Medicare beyond hospital and medical services; and how patients and physicians can be assured that they will have affordable access to cost-effective innovative medicines and reliable access to generic prescription drugs.
- 18. In closing, Board Chair Dr. Brian Brodie shared his observations on what he heard during the emerging issues dialogues that would inform the work of the CMA going forward.

Address by the Quebec minister of health and social services

19. Minister Gaétan Barrette, MD spoke on various timely issues such as the provincial government's balancing of the demand for patient care vis-à-vis taxes; user fees in relation to the Canada Health Act; medical marijuana and opioids; and the success of the Choosing Wisely initiative.

Inspiring the profession: How innovators drive change

20. A panel, comprised of journalist Elizabeth Plank, performing arts craftsman Jacques Poulin-Denis, producer André Lauzon, and yoga teacher and entrepreneur Erik Giasson, shared stories and perspectives on inspiration, initiative, resiliency, perseverance and courage that allowed each to reinvent their lives.

Walking the talk: Building a Charter of Shared Values for Canadian medicine

21. Dr. André Bernard, Doctors Nova Scotia Board Chair, led a session to receive input and feedback on the development of a Charter of Shared Values to articulate and further strengthen the professional responsibilities to which physicians can commit in support of a unified profession in the service of patients.

General motions

Consent agenda resolutions

22. The following resolutions were carried on consent on Aug. 22, 2017.

General Council approves the following motions contained in the General motions consent agenda: GM5-2, GM5-6, GM5-7, GM5-9, GM5-10, GM5-11, GM5-12, GM5-16, GM5-17, GM5-18, GM5-22, GM5-23, GM5-24 and GM5-25.

Resolution 17-3 Carried

Healthy population

The Canadian Medical Association supports development of clinical best practice guidelines for the provision of care to new immigrants and refugees.

Resolution 17-4 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports advocacy efforts to increase awareness of the physical and mental health risks associated with international commercial surrogacy.

Resolution 17-5 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports making naloxone and other opioid overdose prevention supplies available in publicly accessible locations.

Resolution 17-6 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports increased approval and funding of pharmacologic options for the management of chronic pain in older adults.

Resolution 17-7 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports mandatory adherence to national or province/territory-specific nutritional guidelines in Canadian schools, including a means to monitor and report school compliance.

Resolution 17-8 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association urges provincial and territorial governments to support the federal Genetic Non-Discrimination Act (Bill S-201) by enacting corresponding legislation that echoes privacy protection.

Resolution 17-9 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association calls on the federal government to implement a federal excise tax on sugarsweetened beverages and artificially-sweetened drinks sold in Canada to subsidize healthier food options.

Resolution 17-10 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association calls on the federal government to use Canada's term as G7 President in 2018 to add antimicrobial stewardship and antimicrobial resistance surveillance as part of their agenda.

Resolution 17-11 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association calls on governments to address the lack of access to insured health services for those residing in Canada, regardless of immigration status.

Resolution 17-12 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association promotes legislative changes to protect migrants and refugees from arbitrary and indefinite detention in jails and jail-like facilities in Canada.

Resolution 17-13 Carried

Vibrant profession

The Canadian Medical Association supports national recognition of physician administrators/executives with initiatives designed to recognize and support their contributions.

Resolution 17-14 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association recognizes the importance of continued involvement in the provision of clinical care for physician administrators/executives, and encourages organizations employing these physicians to provide clinical practice opportunities.

Resolution 17-15 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association encourages medical licensing bodies to require registrants to have training in cultural awareness.

Resolution 17-16 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports increased physician awareness and education in identifying and supporting victims of human trafficking.

Resolution 17-17 Carried

23. The speaker entertained debate of the remaining general motions on Tues. Aug. 22 and Wed., Aug. 23, 2017. All resolutions duly carried by General Council were forwarded to the Board of Directors for disposition.

Vibrant profession

The Canadian Medical Association will develop a national guide on levels of medical intervention for use across the continuum of care.

Resolution 17-18 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports a review of Canada's medical liability system and an evaluation of alternative models.

Resolution 17-19 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association recommends that MD Financial Management Inc. provide information regarding socially responsible investing when marketing and advising on its investment portfolios

Resolution 17-20 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association will work with stakeholders in medical education to encourage awareness of the difference between non-commissioned financial/insurance advisers employed by national and provincial/territorial medical associations and commissioned financial/insurance advisers employed by banks and other corporations.

Resolution 17-21 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association will create an electronic portal to allow medical organizations to upload their contact information.

Resolution 17-22 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association will support new projects and mechanisms to facilitate the expansion and increase the scale of innovative health system pilot projects in Canada.

Resolution 17-23 Carried

Healthy population

pharmaceuticals sold in Canada that contain gluten and/or priority allergens.

The Canadian Medical Association calls for mandatory labelling, warnings and a recall system for prescription

Resolution 17-24 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association supports the inclusion of physical activity history within the vital sign section of electronic medical record systems.

Resolution 17-25 Carried

The Canadian Medical Association calls on governments to ensure improved accessibility and transferability of existing medical data residing in electronic health records across provincial/interprovincial interfaces.

Resolution 17-26 Carried

Valedictory address

- 24. On Tues., Aug. 22, 2017, Dr. Granger Avery said it had been an honour to serve as CMA president and thanked members for the privilege; he also expressed appreciation to the Board of Directors, staff and, above all, for the support of his spouse.
- 25. In closing, he called on physicians to pursue effective collaborative practice models and take those lessons nationwide, and to look after each other.

Physicians facing Canada's opioid crisis

- 26. The panel comprised Dr. David Juurlink, head of the division of Clinical Pharmacology and Toxicology at Sunnybrook Health Sciences Centre in Toronto; Dr. Jean-Bernard Trudeau, assistant secretary at the Collège des médecins du Québec; Dr. Christy Sutherland, Medical Director of the Portland Hotel Society in Vancouver; and Dr. David Milne, staff anesthetist at the Queen Elizabeth II Health Centre in Halifax.
- 27. Members of the panel discussed the history and complexity of the opioid crisis as a public health issue including its proliferation as a prescribed treatment for chronic pain; the role of pharmaceutical companies; the dangers of counterfeit opioids; the principles and experiences of the Insite safe injection site; and common myths surrounding addiction. The discussion also focused on how physician action and advocacy can help reduce the damage caused by opioids; the management and treatment of pain and addiction; and harm reduction.

Installation of president and inaugural address

- 28. On Tues., Aug. 22, 2017, Dr. Laurent Marcoux of Quebec was installed as the 150th president of the CMA. A video was presented with Dr. Marcoux's reflections about colleagues who met 150 years ago to unite in their efforts to give Canadians the best care possible. He pledged to represent the CMA with respect, professionalism and courage.
- 29. He also expressed confidence in the ability to reach true reconciliation with First Nations; and the need to address the social determinants of health and to provide confidence and hope to patients. He expressed the wish that physicians' stories be those of pride and the joy in serving others. In closing, he thanked members for their support and confidence.

Celebrating the profession: CMA awards

- 30. The CMA Awards gala took place at the Quebec City Convention Centre on Aug. 22, 2017.
 - The CMA Awards for Young Leaders were presented to Mr. Bing Yu Chen and Ms. Simei (Amy) Li (students);
 Drs. Aravind Ganesh and Colm McCarthy (residents); and Drs. Farhan Asrar and Paul Dhillon (early career physicians).
 - The Dr. William Marsden Award in Medical Ethics and Professionalism was presented to Dr. James Silvius.
 - The Sir Charles Tupper Award for Political Action was presented to Dr. Peter Kuling.

- The Award for Excellence in Health Promotion was presented to the Sport for Life Society.
- The Physician Misericordia Award was presented to Dr. Réjean Thomas.
- The May Cohen Award for Women Mentors was presented to Dr. Gillian Hawker.
- The John McCrae Memorial Medal would be presented to Captain Raymond Kao at a later date.
- The F.N.G. Starr Award was presented to Dr. David Naylor.
- The Owen Adams Award of Honour was presented to Mr. Ron Sapsford.
- The Medal of Service was presented to Dr. Jean-Claude Forest.
- The F.N.G. Starr Award was presented to Dr. Don Lalonde.
- 31. Terms of reference and a list of past recipients for each award is available at https://www.cma.ca/En/Pages/cma-awards.aspx; biographical information for the 2017 award recipients is available at https://www.cma.ca/en/Pages/2017-cma-award-recipients.aspx.

Medical assistance in dying: Where do we go from here?

- 32. On Wed., Aug. 23, 2017, Dr. Jeff Blackmer provided an overview of the current legal and medical landscape since the Supreme Court of Canada's ruling on medical assistance in dying and highlighted that CMA policy reflects both sides of the issue.
- 33. Following his remarks, participants were polled on how likely they would be willing to participate in medical assistance in dying if a request was made by a mature minor (approx. two thirds); in an instance where mental illness was the sole underlying medical condition (approx. half); and in instances where advanced requests had been made (over 80%).
- 34. Participants engaged in interactive small group discussions on the clinical implications, risks and safeguards that should be considered in relation to medical assistance in dying in the case of mature minors, mental illness and advance requests. The small group discussions were followed by a second polling of the questions presented at the outset of the session; there were only minor variances between the results of the first and second polls.

Nominations and elections

35. The elections were held Wed., Aug. 23, 2017 with Dr. Cindy Forbes presiding.

President-Flect

Dr. Gigi Osler (Man.) was elected President-Elect for the 2017-18 association year.

Committee on Ethics

- 36. The following individuals were elected to the Committee on Ethics for a 1-year term:
 - Dr. Bryce Durafourt (Residents)
 - Ms. Tatyana Danylyshyn (Students)

Board of Directors

- 37. The following individuals were elected to the Board of Directors for a 3-year term:
 - Dr. Rao Tadepalli (Y.T.) 2nd term
 - Dr. Charles Webb (B.C.)
 - Dr. Carl Nohr (Alta.)
 - Dr. Guruswamy Sridhar (Sask.) 2nd term
 - Dr. David Cram (Man.)

- Dr. Adam Steacie (Ont.) 2nd term
- Dr. Richard Tytus (Ont)
- Dr. Celina White (N.S.) 2nd term
- 38. The following individuals were elected to the Board of Directors for a 1-year term:
 - Dr. Melanie Bechard (Residents)
 - Mr. Henry Annan (Students)

Committee on Nominations

- 39. The following individuals were elected to the Committee on Nominations for a 1-year term:
 - Dr. Jason Xiao (Y.T.)
 - Dr. Steve Kraus (N.W.T.)
 - Dr. Carole Williams (B.C.)
 - Dr. Michael Giuffre (Alta.)
 - Dr. Intheran Pillay (Sask.)
 - Dr. Aaron Chiu (Man.)
 - Dr. Shawn Whatley (Ont.)
 - Dr. Yun Jen (Que.)
 - Dr. Michelle Dow (N.S.)
 - Dr. Dharm Sing (N.B.)
 - Dr. David Bannon (P.E.I.)
 - Dr. Wendy Graham (N.L.)
 - Dr. Mithu Sen (Affiliate)
 - Dr. Kimberly Williams (Resident)
 - Dr. Franco Rizzuti (Student)

Audit and Finance Committee

• Dr. Christopher Jyu was elected to the Audit and Finance Committee for a 3-year term.

Appointments Committee

• Dr. Alika Lafontaine was elected to the Appointments Committee for a 3-year term.

CMA Board of Directors' business

40. Dr. Brian Brodie, Chair of the Board of Directors, introduced the Board business section.

2018 Membership fee

41. Dr. Brendan Lewis, Chair of the Audit and Finance Committee, presented the proposed membership fee.

The Canadian Medical Association full membership fee for the year 2018 will be maintained at \$495.

Resolution 17-27

Closing of General Council

42. The 150th meeting of General Council adjourned at 11:32 am on Wed., Aug. 23, 2017.

Carried

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Opening

43. The 2017 Annual General Meeting was held on Wed., Aug. 23, 2017 at the Quebec City Convention Centre. Dr. Laurent Marcoux presided the AGM; Dr. Maria Alexiadis provided support as moderator.

Appointment of Auditor

44. Dr. Brendan Lewis, Chair of the Audit and Finance Committee, presented the following motion.

The Canadian Medical Association will retain PricewaterhouseCoopers as Auditors for the 2018 association fiscal year.

Resolution AGM 17-1 Carried

Governance Committee report (Bylaws)

45. Dr. Shelley Ross, Chair of the Governance Committee, outlined the proposed bylaw changes to: remove archaic language; allow the Board of Directors to set membership fees; decouple the General Council meeting from the Annual General meeting; add a mechanism for special meeting of members; enable virtual participation in the AGM and absentee voting (through a phased-in approach); and continue to freeze the Board size — many of these changes forming part of the current governance review.

The Canadian Medical Association approves the bylaw amendments outlined in Appendix B of the 2017 Report to Members.

Resolution AGM 17-2 Carried

Members' Q&A

46. The stewardship panel of the Chairs and CEOs of CMA, MD and Joule, along with the Chair of the Committee on Ethics, engaged in a question and answer session with members. Questions included CMA's new strategic plan, mission and vision; CMA priorities including physician health and engagement on the Canadian Controlled Private Corporations file; opportunities to network with other association leadership; MD advisor compensation; Joule's role within the CMA Enterprise; and CMA functionality relative the move of staff to a temporary location and plans for the land at 1867 Alta Vista Dr.

New Business

47. Dr. Marcoux announced that as part of the 150th celebrations, CMA would be making a donation to underprivileged students in Quebec.

Adjournment

48. The legislative and business session of the 2017 annual meeting adjourned at 12:11 pm, on Aug. 23, 2017.